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Cheviot Jute Mill has evolved with
time and created state-of-the-art
infrastructure capable of
manufacturing a variety of jute
textiles and yarns for industrial use.

Our core strength is Trust and
Perfection. We continuously challenge
ourselves to deliver the finest product.
Our quest for excellence transpires in
building the Trust of our Customer.
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The year of incorporation. The Company was originally

set up by the House of Andrew Yules, Calcutta in the
name of Delta Jute Mills Company Limited

%% 1967-68

Two Jute Mills, namely Budge Budge Jute Mills Company
Limited and Cheviot Jute Mills Company Limited, were
amalgamated with Delta Jute Mills Company Limited and
subsequently, the name was changed to Budge Budge
Amalgamated Mills Limited with effect from the

11th day of January, 1968.

] 1975-76

Budge Budge Amalgamated Mills Limited came under the
present management of Kanoria family. Later, the name
of the Company was rechristened to its present name
“Cheviot Company Limited” with effect from

1st day of September, 1976.

& 1995

Export sales recorded an increase of 188% as overseas
buyers gradually recognised the high quality of jute
products offered by Cheviot like upholstery fabrics,

blended fabrics, industrial yarn etc. The Company

was accorded the status of an Export House by the
Government of India. The Company made a Public Issue
and the shares were listed on BSE Limited. 3

(al
& 1997

Cheviot commenced commercial production in a

100% Export Oriented Unit set up at Budge Budge with
modern looms for manufacture of high grade industrial
fabrics in January, 1997. The Company achieved

30% growth in Export Sales during this year.

0
(&) 2000
Cheviot achieved ¥ 10,000 Lakhs+ Turnover during
this year. Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria was appointed as

Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

\

J
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Corporate Overview
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2003

This year was characterised by timely implementation of Company’s
prestigious projects by setting up a new 100% Export Oriented
Unit in Falta Special Economic Zone for manufacture of industrial
fabrics which commenced commercial production in March, 2003
and installation of 3.14MW Captive Power Plant at composite Jute
Mill for uninterrupted power supply which became operational in
January, 2003.

2006

Cheviot announced issuance of Bonus Shares in the ratio
of 1:2 by capitalisation of General Reserve.

2011

Cheviot achieved ¥ 30,000 Lakhs+ Turnover during this year.

2015

The Company was accorded the status of Two Star Export
House by the Government of India.

2018-19

Cheviot announced issuance of Bonus Shares in the

ratio of 1:2 by capitalisation of General Reserve.

Cheviot received two prestigious awards, Silver Export
Award 2017-18 for conventional jute products and Silver
Export Award 2017-18 for jute diversified products from
the Ministry of Textiles, Government of India.

2020

The Company featured in the top 1,000 listed companies
by market capitalisation on BSE Limited.

2021

The Company was accorded the status of Three Star Export
House by the Government of India.

2022

Cheviot's profit before tax surpassed ¥ 10,000 Lakhs and
Turnover exceeded ¥ 50,000 Lakhs during this year on
account of increased sale volume and better margins on
exports. The shares of the Company have been listed on
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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for almost 50 years. Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria had a strong
conviction on the versatility of golden fibre and did not
remain confined to traditional jute products. He pioneered
a specialised weaving unit at Falta Special Economic Zone
which led to a global presence for jute textiles.

The value-added high grade export yarns and textiles
fetched recognition for jute goods across the globe.

An eco-friendly, bio-degradable and natural fibre holds
an exciting potential and contributes to maintain a safe
environment. The diversified use of jute in floor coverings,
jute geotextiles, shopping bags and other industrial
purposes is giving a boost in the demand for jute goods.

Corporate Portrait

Moving into the 125th year since inception, we express our o Falx
sincere gratitude to our investors, customers, associates and

employees for their longstanding trust and commitment.

Cheviot has been under the management of Kanoria family @

A new multi-storey weaving and processing unit is set to be
commissioned in order to boost the production of fabrics
with superior finishes to satiate the global demand for
sustainable fabric.

Of trust.
Of commitment.
Of perfection.

4 | Cheviot Company Limited



Our Vision

To produce and supply
environmental-friendly
jute products conforming
to international standards
and create value for our
stakeholders.

Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements | Notice

Our Credentials

Cheviot Company Limited, the flagship company of Group
Cheviot, rests on the pillars of integrity, perseverance,
technology, innovation, and precision. Upholding these
values, Cheviot has established itself as one of the premier
Jute conglomerates of the world. Today, it manufactures high
quality precision jute yarn, fabrics, sacks and customised
products such as geotextiles, food grade bags and technical
textiles for the domestic and international markets. Cheviot
strives to provide sustainable alternatives through the
processing of the eco-friendly and highly versatile golden
fibre. Cheviot produces 50+ million jute bags per year that
are solely used for food grain packaging by the Government
of India.

The company has two state-of-the-art manufacturing units
which are equipped with the latest technology situated in
the State of West Bengal, India.

Falta Special Economic Zone Plant

A composite jute mill. This facility is equipped to
produce customised food grade bags, fabrics that
are free from hydrocarbons, packaging products,
geotextiles and premium quality yarn of various
counts.

This is a sophisticated jute weaving unit
manufacturing decorative fabrics, geotextiles
and lifestyle products woven on Sulzer Looms.
This 100% export oriented unit offers customised
products to foreign buyers across the globe.




Cheviot Company Limited

- a company that has built a legacy
of trust through sustainable growth
over 124 years.

Superior quality

of products

Motivation and
involvement across
all operations and
with customers

Customer
satisfaction as core
business motto

Continuous
technological
advancement in
manufacture

Transparency
and fair business
practices

Vigorous research
and development
work leading to
innovation

Innovative
solutions to meet
customer needs

Consumer
friendly and direct
relationship with
customers

Long-term vision
and commitment

Financial stability
as reflected in
company growth

and performance

In other words, a company that epitomizes
quality as its mainstay to achieve a
sustainable growth. The dedication and
consistency is reflected in the performance.
We are proud to report that the installed
capacity has gone up by nearly 50% in

a span of 20 years and the Net Worth of
the Company has doubled over a decade.
Having reduced water consumption by 20%
and energy consumption by 25% over the
last 5 years, we are on the path to being a
carbon neutral production house.

6 | Cheviot Company Limited
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[Customers

The Company has export presence in ® USA
several countries including Belgium, o Saudi Arabia
Netherland, Germany, Italy, USA, Saudi

Arabia, Turkey, Japan and Indonesia. :
The domestic sales largely consist of Indonesia
Government procurement for packaging

of food grains. Besides, there are local

demands for jute fabrics and bags in the

domestic market.

Netherland'e ® Germany
Belgium ®

.
Italy- “eTurkey o Japan

Certification

Quality has been the hallmark for
Cheviot products. The Company is
accredited with 1S/1ISO 9001:2015
for Quality Management System;
1S/ISO 14001:2015 for
Environmental Management
System and IS/ISO 45001:2018

for Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems. Cheviot
Company Limited is recognised as a
THREE STAR EXPORT HOUSE by the

Government of India. )

Stock Information

BSE Scrip Code

526817

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Symbol

Cheviot

ISIN
INE974B01016
Promoters’ holding
74.8278%

Market Capitalisation

367,946 Lakhs
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Financial Performance

44.31% 8.81%

growth in revenue from operations growth in EBITDA from
from ¥ 39,575.57 Lakhs in 2020-21 % 9,796.09 Lakhs in 2020-21 to
to¥ 57,113.07 Lakhs in 2021-22 : % 10,659.14 Lakhs in 2021-22

4.79% 43.21%

growth in PAT from increase in exports from
% 7,572.31 Lakhs in 2020-21 to % 16,442.72 Lakhs in 2020-21 to
% 7,934.87 Lakhs in 2021-22 % 23,548.04 Lakhs in 2021-22

Revenue from operations Net Profit Exports CAPEX

Z in Lakhs % in Lakhs Z in Lakhs % in Lakhs
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Ratios: ROCE Current Ratio | Debt-Equity Ratio | Debt Service Coverage Ratio | Return on Equity Ratio
.

2021-22 19.87% | 6.31 0.02 164.81 16.25%
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Enhancing value to shareholders

Dividend payout

® in Lakhs)
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
676.69 676.69 766.91 766.91 4511
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22
43.11 64.67 3,104.10 10,967.03 3,610.13°

*Dividend declared by the Board of Directors,
subject to approval of the members at the
ensuing annual general meeting.

Share Price Movement

2500
2000
1500
1000
500
0 —@— High
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Low
Buy-back Offer 55,745 2020-21 2021-22
< 3,000.00 Lakhs 3 1,800.00 Lakhs 3 4,312.50 Lakhs
2,00,000 ordinary shares @ 1,500/- 2,00,000 ordinary shares @ % 900/- 2,50,000 ordinary shares @% 1,725/-
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Community Outreach

Cheviot is a Company with a conscience. We believe in
benevolent altruism and provide opportunities to the
underprivileged to gain access to basic necessities such as
healthcare, hygiene and education - empowering them to

fulfil their dreams. We also come forward and dispense support
to the needy after natural disasters and medical emergencies.

We provide facilities such as labour quarters, toilets, clean drinking
water, subsidized canteen, rest rooms, dispensary and free primary
school for the welfare of our staffs and workers.

10 | Cheviot Company Limited

Cheviot has been fulfilling its social and philanthropic obligation
through various CSR activities inter-alia undertaken in the field
of promoting education, healthcare, supporting nationally
recognised sports, supporting the families of martyred armed
force personnel among others. These endeavours have left

a positive impact on human lives as part of our community
outreach programmes.
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Treatment of COVID patients

Promoting nationally recognised sport

2014-15 75.00

2015-16 73.27

2016-17 81.19
The CSR spending over the years 2017-18 90.56
T in Lakhs

2018-19 110.00

2019-20 118.03

2020-21 127.58
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Ten years
Financial
Highlights

& in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Reserves and Revenue Current Net profit Ealjnlngs per i B
Year ordinary share Value per per
surplus / Other from Tax for the . .
Ended equity** operations | ExpenseA oar (FV. of ordinary ordinary
quity P P y % 10/- each) @ share @ share @
in ¥ in¥

BY=0553 451 30,963 31414 28,906 1,001 3,071 45.39 464.24
31-03-14 451 32,818 33,269 27,843 1,042 2,680 39.61 491.65
31-03-15 451 35,243 35,694 26,700 749 3,458 51.10 52749
Sl 451 41,358 41,809 34,304 1,453 3,647 53.90 617.85
31-03-17 # 451 47,005 47,456 39,354 1,465 4,948 a=n 701.31
31-03-18 # 431 49,608 50,039 37,612 1,948 5408 8243 773.78
31-03-19 # 647 60,539 61,186 39,456 255 5018 TS 946.14
31-03-20 # 647 61,670 62,317 45,805 1,505 4812 7441 963.63
31-03-21 # 627 67,590 68,217 39,576 1,577 VoS 11843 1,088.54
31-03-22 # 602 54,698 55,300 SYatE3 2,382 TAORES 12740 919.08

* Share capital includes amount forfeited amounting to % 0.35.

** Reserve and surplus / Other equity and Net worth include revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment.
# The figures from 31st March, 2017 onwards are Ind AS compliant and are not comparable with previous years.

@ To facilitate like to like comparison, adjusted for 1:2 bonus issue during financial year 2018-2019.

A Current tax expense includes current tax shown in other comprehensive income.
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24, PARK STREET,

CELICA HOUSE, 9TH FLOOR, CELICA PARK
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E-MAIL ID
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WEBSITES
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BANKER
AXIS BANK LIMITED
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STATUTORY AUDITORS
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PHONE: (033) 2248 2248 / 2243 5029
FAX: (033) 2248 4787
E-MAIL ID: mdpldc@yahoo.com

PLANTS LOCATION

BUDGE BUDGE UNIT

19, MEHTA ROAD, BADEKALINAGAR,
BUDGE-BUDGE, 24-PARGANAS (SOUTH)
PIN 700 137, WEST BENGAL

FALTA UNIT

SECTOR I, FALTA SPECIAL ECONOMIC ZONE
FALTA, 24-PARGANAS (SOUTH)

PIN 743 504, WEST BENGAL
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CHEVIOT

SINCE 1897

BOARD’S REPORT R inLakhs)

Dear Members,
Your Directors are pleased to present their report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS

Particulars ‘ For the year ended

31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 57,113.07 39,575.57
Operating profit after depreciation and amortisation 7,571.29 4,747.05
Add: Other income 2,608.95 4,554.73
Profit before tax 10,180.24 9,301.78
Tax expense 2,245.37 1,729.47
Profit for the year 7,934.87 7,572.31

2. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of ¥ 60/- per ordinary share on 60,16,875 ordinary shares of face value of ¥ 10/-
each (600%), amounting to X 3,610.13 for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (PY.% 175/- per ordinary shares on 62,66,875 ordinary shares of
face value of ¥ 10/- each (1750%), amounting to ¥ 10,967.03 was declared as special dividend).

3. TRANSFERTO RESERVE
Your directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the reserves out of current year profits.

4. OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review. Revenue from operations, profitability and
earnings per share show under noted position during the year under review as compared to previous year:

Particulars For the year ended

31st March, 2022
Revenue from operations 57,113.07 39,575.57
Export sales (C.LF. value) 23,548.04 16,442.72
Operating profit 7,571.29 4,747.05
Other income 2,608.95 4,554.73
Profit before tax 10,180.24 9,301.78
Tax expense 224537 1,729.47
Profit for the year 7,934.87 7,572.31
Earnings per share (EPS) of face value of ¥ 10/- (In%) 127.40 11843

The performance of the manufacturing units have improved substantially during the year under review. We overcame the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic and witnessed a significant improvement in production and capacity utilisation. There was an acute shortage of Raw
Jute and the Government of India (GOI) had announced a maximum price of Raw Jute from the start of the new crop season.

This adversely affected the margins on supply of sacks to the Government. On the export front, our challenges were the impact of the Russia
- Ukraine war on the European economy and high ocean freight rates. Inspite of these adversities, we were able to increase our exports
substantially and this contributed significantly towards our improved financial performance. Better capacity utilisation and support from
exports have helped us to achieve excellent operating profit during the year under review.

Other income largely comprises of gains on investments sold or measured at fair value through profit or loss as per IND AS 109. Gain on
investments for the year has reduced due to the impact of capital market scenario. We can expect higher interest earnings in years ahead as
a consequence of rising inflation.

14 | Cheviot Company Limited
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BOARD’S REPORT (contd.) & inLakhs)

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
a) Industry structure and developments

For the second year in continuation, there is a short crop of Raw Jute. The Government of India has announced a maximum procurement
price of Raw Jute at ¥ 6,500 per Metric Tonne while the minimum support price is ¥ 5,000 per Metric Tonne. The Government has also
linked the B.Twill bags sale price to this notional maximum price of Raw Jute and thereby made the manufacturing and sale of B.Twill bags
economically challenging.

Many manufacturing units in the Jute Industry have been forced to close down or reduce operations due to the adverse economic factors
as well as shortage of Raw Jute.

Major impact in European countries due to the Russia - Ukraine war are visible. We can only hope that the situation will stabilise and our
exports will continue unhindered. Presently, it is a matter of concern.

Major cost increase in all inputs due to inflation are visible.
b) Opportunities and threats

Opportunities

Greater awareness among the people about the demerits of using plastic is leading to a higher demand for natural bio-degradable
jute goods.

The diversified use of jute in floor coverings, jute geo-textiles, shopping bags and other industrial purposes is giving a boost in the
demand for jute goods.

Cheviot will be commissioning its new weaving unit shortly which will help increase production of value added and diversified
products for the Domestic markets.

Threats

COVID 19 is a major threat to the Jute Industry and a matter of concern as the operations could be affected anytime either at our end
or our customers,

The European economy could be hit hard as a consequence of the war which in turn will have repercussion on us since a large portion
of our exports are to Europe. The USD / Euro rates are at historical low.

c) Segment-wise or product-wise performance

The Company is engaged in a single business segment i e. manufacturing and sale of jute goods. Hence disclosure requirement as
required by IND AS - 108 are not applicable in respect of business segment.

However, the geographical segments considered for disclosure are as under:

Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2022
Within India ONVEIRIEES Total
Revenue 32,617.52 23,548.04 56,165.56 22,631.95 ‘ 16,442.72 ‘ 39,074.67

Non-current assets other than financial
instruments *

25,232.96

18,826.24 = 18,826.24 25,232.96 =

* Non-current assets other than financial instruments include property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, right of use assets,
investment property, other intangible assets, non-current tax assets (net) and other non-current assets.

d) Outlook

Your company has performed well inspite of all the adverse factors as stated above. This was only possible due to the dedication of
all our workers, staff, executives and managerial team. Challenges going ahead are the after effects of the War, Raw Jute shortage and
Government of India linking B.Twill prices to notional maximum rates announced. Outlook for the coming year is not very clear at the
moment.
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CHEVIOT

SINCE 1897

BOARD’S REPORT (contd.) & inLakhs)

e) Risks and concerns

h

=

=

The major areas of risk and concern for the Jute Industry are:

- Availability of Raw Jute: Government move to announce a maximum price of Raw Jute only 30% above the statutory support prices.
Jute cultivation should be beneficial for the farmer and he must get a reasonable price for his product. Such price restrictions will
reduce the interest of the farmers in Raw Jute cultivation and further affect raw jute crop;

- Raw Jute Trading: Excessive restrictions on Raw Jute trade are affecting the trade and genuine traders are suffering;
- Global scenario: The aftereffects of Russia - Ukraine war on the world economy and inflation can have adverse impacts;

- Lack of diversification: Industry needs diversification and product development through proper Research and Development which is
scarce in reality;

- Limitations: Excessive Government interference and dependence of the Jute Industry on Government Sales;

- Lack of modernisation: Industry needs to modernise and develop new technology machines through Research and Development so
as to manufacture cost competitive jute products for future growth.

Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Board of Directors have designed and implemented various policies and procedures for internal financial controls to ensure orderly
and efficient recording and generation of reliable financial and operational information, safequarding of assets from unauthorised use or
losses, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable
financial information and ensuring compliance with corporate policies and applicable laws. The audit committee evaluates the internal
control system periodically. During the year under review, no fraud was detected by the auditors.

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022, based on the essential components of
internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company.

Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance

The following are the significant areas of financial performance:

Particulars For the year ended % Increase / (Decrease)
31st March, 2022

Revenue from operations 57,113.07 39,575.57 4431%

C.LF. value of export sales 23,548.04 16,442.72 43.21%

Finance cost 4257 4395 (3.14)%

Inventories 8,769.83 8,215.34 6.75%

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,046.35 782.40 33.74%

and other intangible assets (including
changes in capital work-in-progress, capital
advances/creditors)

Revenue from operations have improved mainly on account of increased sale volume and better margins on exports. The expenditure
on property, plant and equipment were incurred mainly on setting up modern weaving facilities. The overall performance has improved
during the year under review.

Material developments in human resource / industrial relations front, including number of people employed

Industrial relations remained cordial during the year under review. There is shortage of new entrants in the Jute Industry.

The Company continues to impart in-house training to new entrants to bring about all round improvement in their working knowledge
and skills. The Company also continues its various staff welfare schemes. As on 31st March, 2022, there were 4,127 employees on the roll
of the Company.
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BOARD’S REPORT (contd.) & inLakhs)

i) Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial
ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof

Particulars ‘ For the year ended % Change
31st March, 2022

Current Ratio 6.31:1 9.20:1 (31.41)%

Operating Profit Margin (%) 13.26% 11.99% 10.59%

Net Profit Margin (%) 13.89% 19.13% (27.39%

The Company had utilised the surplus funds held as Investments under Current Assets for capital expenditure, distribution of special
dividend and Buy-back of 2,50,000 ordinary shares from the eligible shareholders during the year under review. The impact of these
pay-outs on Current Assets and normal increase in current liabilities at year end for business operations have resulted to a change of
more than 25% in the Current Ratio compared to previous year. The operating profit margin has improved due to higher business profit.
However, the net profit margin has dropped on account of plunge in other income from investments during the year under review. Please
refer to Note 57 to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 for more details on Financial Ratios.

j) Details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with a detailed
explanation thereof

Particulars | For the year ended 31st March, 2022
Return on Net Worth 17.20% 15.65%

Return on Net Worth is calculated by dividing profit for the year by average net worth during the year. Return on Net Worth has increased
due to (a) higher net profit for the year and (b) reduction in the average net worth during the year on account of outflow by way of
dividend and Buy-back of ordinary shares.

k) Cautionary statement
Statement made in this section of the report is based on the prevailing situation and future expectation are anticipated based on the
prevailing market situation. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied in the statements depending on the circumstances.
6. SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has one class of issued share i.e. ordinary share of face value of ¥ 10/- each.

During the year under review, your Company completed Buy-back of 2,50,000 fully paid up ordinary shares of ¥ 10/- each (representing
3.99% of the total number of Ordinary Share Capital of the Company as at 31st March, 2021) at the Buy-back price of ¥ 1,725/- per ordinary
share for an aggregate consideration of ¥ 4,312.50 from all the eligible members of the Company holding shares as on the Record Date
(17th December, 2021), on a proportionate basis, through the “Tender Offer” route in accordance with the provisions of Section 68 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of
Securities) Regulations, 2018. The 2,50,000 ordinary shares bought back were extinguished on 4th February, 2022.

Accordingly, as at 31st March, 2022, the issued, subscribed and fully paid up ordinary share capital of the Company stood at ¥ 602.04
consisting of 60,16,875 fully paid up ordinary shares of ¥ 10/- each (including ¥ 0.35 being the amount originally paid up on 7,000 ordinary
shares not fully paid-up and forfeited).

The shares of Cheviot Company Limited are listed on BSE Limited. The Company has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the financial year
2022-23 to BSE Limited.
7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, a separate report on corporate governance together with a certificate from M/s SJAB & Associates, a firm of practising company
secretaries, confirming compliance thereof is given in Annexure-l forming part of this report.

8. ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company’s websites: https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.
net/investors-jute/annual-reports-jute/.

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Particulars of investments made by the Company have been disclosed in Note 9 and Note 14 to the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022. The Company has not given any loan or guarantee during the year.
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11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of Directors have developed a risk management policy for the Company, identifying therein the elements of risk and concern
that may threaten the existence of the Company. The senior management continuously evaluates the risk elements through a systematic
approach to mitigate or reduce the impact of risk elements. The elements of risks and concerns are periodically reviewed by the Board of
Directors. Discussion on risks and concerns have been made in this report under the head ‘management discussion and analysis

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

During the year ended 31st March, 2022, your Company has spent X 122.55 on various CSR activities. The annual report on CSR activities, in
terms of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is provided in Annexure-Il forming part of this report.

During the year, our CSR programs were oriented toward various activities to support the treatment of COVID-19 patients and to support our
frontline healthcare workers involved in their treatment. CSR programs were also undertaken to promote nationally recognised sport and for
the benefit of armed force dependents.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board of Directors is available on Company’s websites
(https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/). The composition of CSR
Committee is disclosed in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per
Regulation 22 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the
employees and directors to report their grievance(s) / concern(s) about instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or
violation of Company’s code of conduct to the Vigilance Officer or the Chairman of the audit committee. During the year under review, no
complaint was reported. The whistle blower policy is available on the Company’s website (https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.
groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/).

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The Board of Directors evaluated its own performance, its Committees and the performance of independent directors. The nomination
and remuneration committee carried out annual performance evaluation of individual directors. The overall performance of the Board of
Directors, its committees and individual directors was found adequate and effective in terms of the criteria set out by the nomination and
remuneration committee.

The evaluation of the Board of Directors was based on criteria such as appropriateness of Board composition and structure, decisions passed
by the Board of Directors, awareness on Industry operations, compliance with applicable laws, succession planning, strategic planning,
implementation of guidelines or strategies decided by the Board of Directors etc.

The evaluation of the Committees was based on composition, functioning, competencies of the members, frequency of meetings,
procedures, monitoring, advisory role, timely reporting to Board of Directors, etc.

The evaluation of directors was based on criteria such as preparedness for board meetings, attendance, judgements, contribution to risk
management, adherence to Company’s code of conduct and corporate governance, pro-activeness in highlighting areas of concern, sharing
of knowledge and business information, disclosure of interest and related parties in timely manner etc.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS,
POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS

In compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the nomination and remuneration committee (NRC) follow the laid down criteria for
identification of persons who are eligible to hold the office of director, key managerial personnel and senior management personnel of
the Company including determination of qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the person and their remuneration and
other matters provided under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The NRC has affirmed that the remuneration paid to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior management personnel are as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

The remuneration policy including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director is available at
the websites: https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors met 5 (five) times during the year under review. More details are available in the report on corporate governance.
COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors have constituted the audit committee with three directors as members, all of whom are financially literate. Two-third
of the members of audit committee are independent directors. More details on the audit committee are given in the report on corporate
governance.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was
not applicable to the Company during the year under review, based on the market capitalisation.

CREDIT RATING

Crisil Limited has assigned long-term rating of A+/stable and short-term rating of A1+ to the Company for the working capital and term loan
facilities availed by the Company. There has been no revision in the credit rating during the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of sub-section 3 read with sub-section 5 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors hereby state to the best of their

knowledge and belief that:

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that period;

(o) thedirectors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

=

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 has been provided in Annexure-lll forming part of this report.

The details of employees prescribed under Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 forms part of this report. However, with regard to the provisions of the second proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and second proviso to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Annual Report
excluding the said information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection and any
member interested in obtaining such information may write to the company secretary and the same will be furnished on request.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH OCCURRED BETWEEN THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end of the financial
year and date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as prescribed under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are provided in Annexure-IV forming part
of this report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Board of Directors have formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party transactions
which has been disclosed on the website of the Company. All transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, during the year, were in the ordinary course of business and at arm's-length price.

There was no materially significant related party transaction entered into by the Company with its promoters, directors or key managerial
personnel which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large or which warrants the approval of the members.
Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is
not applicable to the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and hence does not form part of this report.

Details of related party transactions entered into by the Company, in terms of IND AS-24 are disclosed in note 53 to the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. All related party transactions were placed before the audit committee for prior approval and
review on a quarterly basis and prior omnibus approval of the audit committee was obtained for the transactions which were of a repetitive nature.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

DIRECTORS

Mrs. Malati Kanoria (DIN 00253241) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers herself for
re-appointment.

On the recommendation of the nomination and remuneration committee, the Board of Directors have re-appointed Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria
(DIN 06950837) as Wholetime Director of the Company, for a further period of 5 (five) years with effect from 24th May, 2022, whose office
shall be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation, subject to the approval of the members at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The terms and conditions as to remuneration and otherwise are set out at ltem No. 5 of the notice convening the ensuing
annual general meeting.

The information about the directors seeking re-appointment as required by Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2") have been given
in the notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting.

All the independent directors have declared that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16(1)(b) and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent
directors of the Company and the Board of Directors are satisfied of the integrity, expertise and experience of all the independent directors
on the Board of Directors. All the independent directors have registered themselves on Independent Directors Databank.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, all the Key Managerial Personnel continue to hold their offices.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

No company has become or ceased to be the Company’s subsidiary, joint venture or associate company during the year. The Company does
not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate company as on 31st March, 2022.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed
thereunder. Further, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance
sheet.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (the Rules) all unpaid or unclaimed dividends are required to be transferred by the
Company to the IEPF Authority (IEPF) established by the Government of India, after the completion of seven years. Further, according to
the Rules, the shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall be
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF.

Accordingly, the Company had transferred ¥ 12.86 lying in the unpaid dividend account for the financial year 2013-14 to the bank account
of IEPF on 16th September, 2021. Further, 1,756 ordinary shares were transferred to the IEPF during the year. The details of unpaid dividend
and shares transferred to the IEPF are available at the following websites: (https://www.cheviotgroup.com/ or https://www.groupcheviot.
net/investors-jute/unclaimed-dividends-jute/).

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

No significant and/or material order was passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the going concern status and
Company's operations in future. Details of contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) are disclosed in Note 45
to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

No application or proceeding was made or pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year
under review.
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33.

34,

39,

VARIATION IN VALUATION

During the year under review, there was no instance of one-time settlement with any bank or financial institution necessitating disclosure
or reporting in respect of difference in valuation done by the Company.

During the year under review, the Company had engaged a registered valuer under Section 247 of the Companies Act, 2013 for valuation of
its freehold land. Based on the valuation report, the downward revision in the fair value of such freehold land have been recognised through
other comprehensive income as changes in revaluation surplus by ¥ 4,763.06 (net of taxes) in the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2022.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board of Directors had laid down internal financial controls for preparation of reliable financial statement. The Audit Committee and the
auditors evaluates the internal financial control system periodically. The measures taken for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information were found to be adequate.
The record maintenance including back up system were found to be adequate and working effectively.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaint Committee as required to be formed under
Section 4 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
The Company has adopted a policy in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. During the year under review, no complaint of sexual harassment has been
received by the Internal Complaint Committee. More details are available in the report on corporate governance.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302049E), was appointed as statutory auditors of the Company at the annual
general meeting held on 25th August, 2017 for a term of five consecutive years, to hold office till the conclusion of the annual general
meeting to be held in the calendar year 2022.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, have recommended the members for re-appointment of
M/s Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 302049E) as the statutory auditors for the second term of five consecutive
years from the conclusion of the 124th annual general meeting until the conclusion of the 129th annual general meeting.

The resolution included at Item No. 4 of the notice convening the annual general meeting seeks members’approval to the re-appointment
of M/s Singhi & Co. as statutory auditors. In terms of Regulation 36(5) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the term of re-appointment including the basis of recommendation for re-appointment have
been disclosed in the explanatory statement forming part of the Notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company.

M/s Singhi & Co. have confirmed that they are eligible for being appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second term of five
consecutive years.

There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark in the Independent Auditors' Report for the financial year ended
31st March, 2022. The statutory auditors have not reported any incidence of fraud during the year under review in terms of Section 143(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 necessitating disclosure in the Board's Report.

COST ACCOUNTS AND COST AUDIT

The Company is required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained by the Company.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed thereunder, the Board of Directors have re-appointed
M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000018), as cost auditor for the financial year 2022-23 to conduct the audit of
the cost accounting records maintained by the Company. The resolution included at Item No. 6 of the notice convening the annual general
meeting seeks members'ratification to the remuneration payable to the cost auditor. M/s D. Radhakrishnan & Co., have long experience in
the field of cost audit and have been conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the past several years. The Cost Audit
Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 was filed with the ROC in XBRL mode on 24th October, 2021.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT

The Board of directors have appointed M/s MR & Associates, a firm of practicing company secretaries (CoP 2551) to carry out the Secretarial
Audit under the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The report from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial
year ended 31st March, 2022 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The secretarial audit report is enclosed as
Annexure V to this report. During the year under review, the Secretarial Auditor did not report any matter under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 necessitating disclosure in the Board's Report.

Further, the Company has received the Secretarial Compliance Report for the year ended 31st March, 2022 issued by the secretarial auditor
and the same was filed with BSE Limited on 7th May, 2022.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the year under review and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors express their deep sense of gratitude to the Government, vendors, financial institutions, banks, regulatory authorities,
customers and all other stakeholders in recognition to their constant support and co-operation received during the year and look forward
to build stronger relation in the years ahead. Your directors also place on record their appreciation for the contribution made by employees
at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 (DIN: 00060259)
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company'’s philosophy on Code of Governance

At Cheviot Company Limited (“the Company”), it is imperative that the affairs of the Company are managed in a fair and transparent manner.
Your Company follows strong governance standards which enables the Company to uphold the integrity, transparency and accountability
in all its dealings. The Company's philosophy on Code of Governance has always remained focused on the direction of achieving sustained
growth and long-term value creation for its stakeholders.

2. Board of Directors

(<)
f=3

Composition and category of directors

The composition of Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of executive and non-executive directors in conformity
with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing Regulations”). Presently,
the Board of Directors consists of 7 (seven) directors with 2 (two) executive (promoter) directors, 1 (one) non-executive (promoter) director
(woman) and 4 (four) independent non-executive directors (including one woman independent director).

b) Details of attendance of each director at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with number of other
directorship(s) and other Board Committee Chairmanship(s)/Membership(s) held as on 31st March, 2022.

Name of the Directors Position Attendance Particulars No. of other directorship(s) and other Board committee
[Refer abbreviations memberships / chair manshlps held
el At Board At last AGM held
Meeting (5) on 23rd July, 2021 | Directorship(s) Membershlp Chairmanship(s)
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria CMD, CEO [P] 5 Yes Nil
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria WTD [P] 5 Yes 2 Nil Nil
Mr. Navin Nayar ID|NED 4 Yes 13 5 3
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan ID| NED 5 Yes 8 2 1
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad ID| NED [W] 5 Yes 2 Nil Nil
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania ID|NED 5 Yes 17 Nil Nil
Mrs. Malati Kanoria NED [P] [W] 5 Yes 5 Nil Nil

c) Names of other listed entities where the person is a director and the category of directorship

Name of the Directors Names of other listed entities Category of Directorship

where the person is a director [Refer abbreviations below]

1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 1. Jay Shree Tea and Industries Limited ID |NED
2 Mr. Navin Nayar 1. Amar Vanijya Limited ID| NED

2.Bengal Tea and Fabrics Limited ID|NED

3. Kanco Tea and Industries Limited ID |NED

4. Kilburn Engineering Limited NED
3 Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 1. Asian Hotels (East) Limited ID|NED

2. Magadh Sugar and Energy Limited ID| NED

3. Ramkrishna Forgings Limited ID |NED

The other directors of the Company does not hold directorship in any other listed entity.

A Includes directorship in private limited companies and foreign companies. None of the directors hold directorship in more than seven
listed companies.

* None of the directors of the Company was a member of more than ten Board-level committees, or a chairman of more than five such
committees, across all public companies in which he/she was a director. For reckoning the limit of other committee membership/
chairmanship, the Company has considered only the audit committee and the stakeholders'relationship committee.

Abbreviations:
CMD Chairman and Managing Director CEO | Chief Executive Officer WTD Whole time Director
ID| NED Independent, Non-Executive Director (W] Woman Director [P] Promoter Category
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d) Number of Board meetings held and dates on which held
5 (five) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year on 15th May, 2021, 13th August, 2021, 12th November, 2021,
4th December, 2021 and 14th February, 2022. The maximum gap between two meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days. In
order to adhere to the social distancing norms, the directors participated at all the board meetings held during the year through video
conferencing/other audio-visual means.

e) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se
No director is, inter se, related to any other director on the Board, except Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria and Mrs. Malati Kanoria, who are related to
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

f) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors
Mrs. Malati Kanoria, non-executive director, held 7,546 ordinary shares of the Company as at 31st March, 2022. None of the independent
directors hold any share or convertible instrument of the Company.

g) Web link where details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors is disclosed
The details of familiarisation programme imparted to independent directors are disclosed on the website of the Company
(https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/).

h) A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the Board of Directors

The list of core skills/expertise/competence identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business and sector(s) for it
to function effectively and those actually available with the Board are as under:

SI. No. Areas of core skills/expertise/competence Available with the Board Names of directors who have such skills/
expertise/competence
1 Leadership Yes All directors
2 Understanding of Jute Industry and its Operations Yes All directors
3 Sales and Marketing Yes Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria; and
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria
4 Regulatory Compliances, Legal, Due Diligence Yes Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria;

Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria; and
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan

5 Finance, Corporate Planning, Strategy Formulation Yes All directors
and overall Management
The Board of Directors possess the necessary skills/expertise/competencies in all the above mentioned areas.
i) Other provisions

Itis hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management. None of the independent directors has resigned before the expiry of their tenure
of appointment. The Company has developed proper systems to enable the Board of Directors to periodically review compliance reports
prepared by the Company in respect of laws applicable to the Company. Corrective steps are taken by the Company to rectify any instance of
non-compliance. The Board of Directors have devised plans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior management
level.

3. Audit committee
a) Brief description of terms of reference

The powers, roles and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and
Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference inter alia include:

Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible;

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process;
Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company to the Board of Directors;

Examining and reviewing, quarterly results and annual financial statements and the independent auditor’s report thereon before
submission to the Board of Directors;
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- Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
Discussion with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

- Review the performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;
Review the functioning of whistle blower mechanism;

- Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Approval of related party transactions or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties;

- Review compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
and verify the effectiveness of internal controls followed by the Company.

b) Composition, name of members and chairperson

The details of composition of the Audit Committee with name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Mr. Navin Nayar Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania Member Independent Director
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria Member Whole time Director

All the members of the Audit Committee have rich experience and knowledge in financial and accounting areas.

n
—

Meetings and attendance during the year

During the year, 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 14th May, 2021, 12th August, 2021, 11th November, 2021 and
14th February, 2022.

Name of the directors Number of meetings attended

Mr. Navin Nayar 4
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania 4
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria 4

Chief financial officer, representatives of statutory auditor, internal auditor and cost auditor were invitees to the meetings of the audit
committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the previous AGM of the Company held on 23rd July, 2021. Minutes of
Audit Committee are placed before the Board for noting. The company secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee. The maximum
gap between any two Audit Committee meetings was less than one hundred and twenty days.

4. Nomination and remuneration committee

-

a) Brief description of terms of reference

The powers, role and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section
178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The terms of reference inter alia include:

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board
of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

- Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board of Directors;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the
criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal;

- Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board of Directors, its committees and individual directors to be carried
out either by the Board of Directors or by the nomination and remuneration committee and review its implementation and compliances;

Devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
- Recommend to the Board of Directors, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
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b) Composition, name of members and chairperson

The details of composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Name of the directors Designation Category
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director
Mr. Navin Nayar Member Independent Director
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad Member Independent Director

c) Meetings and attendance during the year
During the year, 2 (two) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 14th May, 2021 and 12th August, 2021.

Name of the directors Number of meetings attended

Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania 2
Mr. Navin Nayar 2
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad 2

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present at the previous AGM of the Company held on 23rd July, 2021.
d

-

Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the evaluation criteria for determining the performance of the independent
directors on the Board broadly covering preparedness for board meetings; attendance; application of independent judgement while taking
decisions; adherence to Company's code of conduct and corporate governance; effective participation in committee meetings; adequate
deliberation on areas of concern; sharing of knowledge and business information; disclosure of interest and related parties in timely manner
and avoiding conflict of interest.

5. Stakeholders’'Relationship Committee
a) Name of non-executive director heading the committee

Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania, an independent director of the Company, is the Chairman of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee. The
details of composition of Stakeholders'Relationship Committee with names of members and chairperson are as follows:

Name of the directors Designation Category
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania Chairman Independent Director
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad Member Independent Director
Mrs. Malati Kanoria Member Non-Executive Director

b) Name and designation of the Compliance Officer
Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer.

c) Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year, number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of
shareholders, number of pending complaints.

During the year under review, 8 (eight) investor complaints were received which have been redressed to the satisfaction of the concerned
shareholders. The Company had no complaint pending at the close of financial year. Queries received from the investors are replied generally
within 15 (fifteen) days of the receipt of the letters/emails.

6. Remuneration of directors
(a) Details of remuneration of directors

(i) Details of remuneration of executive directors for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022:

Name of the directors Commission Contribution to Estimated value of Tenure of
provident fund other allowances appointment
and perquisites
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 24.00 446.00 240 10.16 5 years from
(Chairman and Managing Director) 1st August, 2020
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria 21.00 450.00 Nil 12.09 5 years from
(Wholetime Director) 24th May, 2017%

* Re-appointed for 5 years from 24th May, 2022
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(i) Details of remuneration of non-executive directors, including independent directors of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2022:

Name of the directors | Sitting Fees | Commission
Mr. Navin Nayar (Independent, Non-Executive Director) 040 5.00
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan * (Independent, Non-Executive Director) 0.50 5.00
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad (Independent, Non-Executive Director) 0.50 5.00
Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania (Independent, Non-Executive Director) 0.50 5.00
Mrs. Malati Kanoria (Non-Executive Director, Promoter) 0.50 5.00

* Paid to the firm in which director is a partner.
The Company has not issued any stock options to its directors.

The appointment of the executive directors is governed by the Articles of Association of the Company. The principal terms and conditions
including the remuneration governing the appointment/re-appointment of the executive directors were recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors and the members of the Company.

1

As per terms of appointment, the Company and the executive directors have the right to terminate the appointment by giving three months
prior notice in writing to the other. There is no provision for payment of severance fees under the resolutions governing the appointment of
executive directors.

The Company avails legal and professional services from M/s Khaitan & Co. LLP, a solicitor firm, in which Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, independent
director of the Company is a partner. During the year under review, the Company had paid ¥ 1.88 Lakhs to Khaitan & Co. LLP for legal
and professional services which does not exceed ten per cent or more of the gross turnover of such firm and is not material to affect the
independence of judgement of Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan as an independent director of the Company.

The Company has not entered into any other pecuniary relationship or transaction with the non-executive directors.

b) Criteria of making payment to non-executive directors

The role of the non-executive directors requires devotion of sufficient time to exercise independent judgement in the best interest of
Company with ability to contribute and to monitor corporate governance practice and adherence to the Company’s code of conduct.
Appointments and terms of remuneration of non-executive directors are considered by the Board of Directors of the Company based on
the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the limits specified in the resolution passed by the members.
Remuneration to the non-executive directors is kept at levels such that they retain and motivate directors to run the Company successfully.

Non-executive directors including independent directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fee for attending
meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or any other meeting as may be decided by the Board within the limits prescribed under Section
197 of the Act and Rules made thereunder for payment of sitting fees. Subject to approval of the members of the Company, non-executive
directors including independent directors shall also be paid commission up to an aggregate amount not exceeding 1% (one percent) of the
net profits of the Company for the year.

The amount of commission shall be determined by the Board of Directors based on their attendance, time and effort devoted and any other
contribution made by them. In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the non-executive directors, including independent directors of
the Company shall be entitled to be paid their reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred for attending Board and Committee
meetings or otherwise incurred in the execution of their duties as directors.

In the event that the Company, in any financial year during the tenure of appointment of non-executive directors, including independent
directors of the Company, has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the remuneration payable to non-executive directors, including
independent directors of the Company in such year(s) shall not exceed the ceiling laid down in Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V to the Act or
any modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, subject to such approvals as may be required.

. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Composition, name of members and chairperson

The details of composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Name of the directors Designation Category
Mrs. Malati Kanoria Chairperson Non-Executive Director
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan Member Independent Director
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad Member Independent Director
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b) Meetings and attendance
2 (two) meetings of the CSR committee were held on 27th April, 2021 and 4th March, 2022.

Name of the directors Number of meetings attended
Mrs. Malati Kanoria 2
Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 2
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad 2

8. Separate meeting of Independent Directors

During the year, the independent directors held a separate meeting on Friday, 4th March, 2022 and carried out inter alia the performance
evaluation of the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, other non-independent directors and the Board as a whole and assessed
the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board
to effectively and reasonably perform their duties, as per the requirement of Schedule IV to the Act read with Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations. The meeting was attended by all the independent directors.

9. General Body Meetings
a) Location and time where last three AGMs were held and special resolution passed in the previous three AGMs:

Date, Time and Location of last three AGM Special Resolutions passed at the AGM

23rd July, 2021 at 11:00 a.m. through video conferencing (VC) or other Nil
audio-visual means (OAVM) conducted from the Registered Office

14th August, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. through video conferencing (VC) or | Re-appointment of Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria as Chairman
other audio-visual means (OAVM) conducted from the Registered | and Managing Director for further period of five years w.ef.
Office 1st August, 2020.

24th July, 2019 at 11.00 a.m. at the Sitaram Seksaria Auditorium at | 1) Re-appointment of Mr. Nawal Kishore Kejriwal as Whole time

Bharatiya Bhasha Parishad, 36A, Shakespeare Sarani (4th Floor), Kolkata director for further period of one year w.ef. 1st June, 2019;

700017 2) To create mortgage and/or charge on the movable and
immovable properties of the Budge Budge unit in favour of
Axis Bank Limited to secure the working capital facilities not
exceeding ¥ 32 Crores in aggregate;

3) To pay aggregate annual remuneration exceeding five percent
of the net profits of the Company to the executive directors
who are promoters or members of the promoter group;

4) Giving loans or extending guarantee or providing security or
making investment not exceeding a sum of ¥ 200 Crores over
and above the limit prescribed under Section 186(2) of the Act.

b) Postal Ballot

No special resolution was passed during last year through postal ballot. In pursuance to the proviso to Section 110(1) of the Act, business
required to be transacted by means of postal ballot had been transacted at the general meeting by providing facility to members to vote by
electronic means. There is no item on the agenda of ensuing AGM which requires passing a special resolution through postal ballot.

10. Means of Communication

The quarterly financial results of the Company are uploaded at the website of BSE Limited and the website of the Company and
simultaneously published in newspapers within the stipulated time.

Results are published in Business Standard (all India editions) (in English) and in Sukhabar (in Bengali).

The Company has its own functional websites “https://www.cheviotgroup.com and https://www.groupcheviot.net” where information
about the Company, quarterly financial results, audited financial statements, annual reports, distribution of shareholding at the end of
each quarter, official news releases and such other information required to be disclosed under Regulations 30, 46 and other applicable
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations are regularly updated.

The Company has not made any presentation to institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review.
Management discussion and analysis forms part of the Board's Report.
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11. General Shareholder Information

i)

iii)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

iX)

i)

Xii)

Xiii)

Xiv)

XV)

AGM Date, Time and Venue

Financial year

Dividend payment date

the name and address of each stock exchange(s)

at which the Company’s securities are listed and a
confirmation about payment of annual listing fee to
each of such stock exchange(s)

Stock Code

Market Price data: High, Low during each month in
last financial year

Stock performance of the Company in comparison to
BSE Sensex. (April, 2021 to March, 2022)

Suspension of securities

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Share Transfer System
Distribution of Shareholding as at 31st March, 2022

Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on

equity
Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities

Plant Locations

Friday, 12th August, 2022 at 11.00 a.m. through video conferencing or
other audio-visual means to be conducted from the Registered Office as
per details given in the notice calling the ensuing AGM of the Company.

Financial Year: 1st April to 31st March.

Quarterly, Half-Yearly and Annual Financial Results of the Company shall
be submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) within the time prescribed under
Regulation 33 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Final dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2022, as recommended by
the Board of Directors, will be paid on and from Wednesday, 17th August,
2022, subject to approval of the members at the ensuing AGM of the
Company. Special dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021 was paid
on and from Wednesday, 28th July, 2021.

BSE Limited

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001

Annual listing fee for the year 2022-2023 paid on 19th April, 2022.

ISIN: INE974B01016
BSE Limited: Scrip Code: 526817

Information has been given at the end of clause 11.
Information has been given at the end of clause 11.

The listed securities were not suspended from trading during the year.

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

23, RN. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700 001
Ph: (033) 2248-2248/2243-5029 Fax: (033) 2248 4787
E-mail: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Information has been given at the end of clause 11.
Information has been given at the end of clause 11.

As on 31st March, 2022, 59,04,764 ordinary shares representing 98.1367%
of the Company’s paid—up share capital was held in dematerialised form,
out of which, 92,406 ordinary shares (1.5358%) are lying with IEPF Authority.

Not issued

The Company has proper system to monitor the foreign exchange exposures
on regular basis and appropriate steps are taken by the management to
limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement by entering into forward
contract for hedging foreign exchange exposure against exports and
imports. The details of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure
are reported at Note 56.3 to the financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2022.

The Company’s plants are located at following places:
i) 19, Mehta Road, Badekalinagar, Budge Budge,

24- Parganas (South) - 700 137 (West Bengal);
ii) Sector I, Falta Special Economic Zone, Falta,

24- Parganas (South) -743 504 (West Bengal).
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xvi)  Address for Correspondence Cheviot Company Limited
24, Park Street, Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park, Kolkata - 700 016
Phone: +91 82320 87911/12/13
Email: cheviot@chevjute.com
Investor service/e-voting e-mail ID: investorservices@chevjute.com
Website: www.cheviotgroup.com and www.groupcheviot.net

xvii)  List of all credit ratings obtained by the Company The Company has obtained Bank Loan Rating from Crisil Limited as under:
along with any revisions thereto during the relevant Y 5021-22 2022-23
financial year. -

Total Bank Loan Facilities Rated < 34.00 Crores < 34.00 Crores
Long-Term Rating Crisil A+/Stable Crisil A+/Stable
Short-Term Rating Crisil A1+ Crisil A1+

There has been no revision in the rating during the financial year 2021-2022.
The rating stands re-affirmed by Crisil Limited till 31st December, 2022.

Information in respect of clause 11 (vi)
Market Price data: High, Low during each month (April, 2021 to March, 2022) are given in the table below:

Month High ) Low )
April, 2021 764.00 710.05
May, 2021 1,205.00 721.00
June, 2021 1,960.00 1,113.00
July, 2021 2,055.55 1,293.10
August, 2021 1,485.00 1,260.00
September, 2021 1,369.95 1,250.00
October, 2021 1,305.00 1,102.00
November, 2021 1,390.00 1,131.00
December, 2021 1,500.00 1,251.00
January, 2022 1,470.00 1,301.00
February, 2022 1,451.00 1,041.10
March, 2022 1,240.00 1,051.50

Information in respect of clause 11 (vii)
Stock performance of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex (April, 2021 to March, 2022)

BSE SENSEX = CHEVIOT
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Information in respect of clause 11 (x)

Share Transfer System

The transfer/transmission of shares are approved in accordance with the powers delegated by the Board of Directors to the Chairman and
Managing Director, Wholetime Director and Company Secretary. Pursuant to Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, requests for effecting
transfer, transmission or transposition of securities shall be processed in dematerialised form only. The shares lodged for dematerialisation are
processed within the stipulated time from the date of their lodgement, if instruments are found valid and complete in all respects.

Pursuant to Regulation 76 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018,
M/s MR & Associates, a firm of Practising Company Secretaries carried out the audit to reconcile the total admitted capital in dematerialised
form with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited and total number of shares in physical form
and to confirm that the total listed and paid-up capital are in agreement with the aggregate number of shares. This audit was carried out in
every quarter and the report was submitted to the BSE Limited.

Information in respect of clause 11 (xi)
) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2022

Number of Ordinary Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
shares held Ordinary Shares Shareholding Shareholders / folios Shareholders / folios

Up to 500 7,72,335 12.8361 15,570 97.2942
501 to 1000 1,80,787 3.0047 244 1.5247
1001 to 2000 1,64,599 2.7356 119 0.7436
2001 to 3000 63,482 1.0551 26 0.1625
3001 to 4000 49,874 0.8289 14 0.0875
4001 to 5000 35,204 0.5851 8 0.0500
5001 to 10000 98,845 1.6428 14 0.0875
10001 and above 46,51,749 773117 8 0.0500
Total 60,16,875 100.0000 16,003 100.0000
Physical Mode 1,12,111 1.8633 528 3.2994
Demat Mode 59,04,764 98.1367 15,475 96.7006

b) Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2022:

Category Category of Shareholders Number of Total number of As a percentage of
Code Shareholders Ordinary Shares held | total Ordinary Shares
(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group
1. Indian 7 45,02,294 74.8278
2. Foreign = = =
Total Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 7 45,002,294 74.8278
(B) Public Shareholding
1. Institutions 29 27,146 04512
2. Non-institutions 15,967 14,87,435 24.7210
Total Public Shareholding 15,996 15,14,581 251722

(@) Shares held by Custodians and against which
Depository Receipts have been issued

1. Promoter and Promoter Group = = =
2. Public - - -
Total Shares held by Custodians - = =
TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 16,003 60,16,875 100.0000

Annual Report 2021-22 | 31



CHEVIOT

SINCE 1897

ANNEXURE | TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

12. CEO and CFO certification
Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company provide compliance certificate to the Board of Directors, in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

13. Declaration on compliance with Company’s code of conduct

The Board of Directors have formulated a code of conduct applicable to all the directors and senior management personnel of the Company
incorporating duties of independent directors which has been posted on the websites of the Company (https://www.cheviotgroup.com or
https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/). A declaration signed by the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company affirming compliance with the Company’s code of conduct by the directors and senior management personnel of the Company
is appended to this report.

14. Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account
As on 31st March, 2022, there are no outstanding shares of the Company lying in the demat suspense / unclaimed suspense account.

15. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

T R

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil
@ number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

16. Other Disclosures

i) There are no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and its promoters, directors or their relatives etc. that
may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All transactions, entered with related parties, were in the ordinary
course of business and at arm’s length price with prior approval of the audit committee in line with the policy on related party transactions
of the Company. Disclosures as required under IND AS-24 have been made in Note 53 to the financial statements for the year ended
31st March, 2022. Policy on related party transactions and other policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board of Directors are
displayed on the website (https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/).

i) During the last three years, no penalty or stricture has been imposed on the Company by BSE Limited or Securities and Exchange Board of
India or any other statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the capital markets.

i) Whistle blower policy/vigil mechanism established by the Company offers appropriate protection to the whistle blower(s) from victimisation,
harassment or disciplinary proceedings. The whistle blower(s) may also lodge his/their complaint(s)/concern(s) with the Chairman of the
Audit Committee. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

iv) The Company does not have any subsidiary.

v) The Senior Management Personnel of the Company have confirmed to the Board of Directors that there was no material, financial and
commercial transaction entered during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, where they have personal interest that may have a
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

vi) The details of fees paid/payable to the Statutory Auditors by the Company have been disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements for
the year ended 31st March, 2022.

vii) The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

viii) The Company did not extend any loan or advance to any firm/company in which directors are interested.
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ix) Disclosure of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory corporate governance requirements:

The Company has complied with corporate governance requirements as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of
sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 read with Schedule V to SEBI Listing Regulations.

a) Mandatory requirements: The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under the SEBI Listing Regulations.
b) Discretionary requirements:
A.The Board: The Chairman of the Company is an executive director.

B. Shareholder Rights: Half-yearly results and other information are published in newspaper and uploaded on Company’s websites
(https://www.cheviotgroup.com or https://www.groupcheviot.net).

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report: The Company has received unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2022.

D. Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer: The Board shall review this requirement
after the expiry of present term of office of the Chairman and Managing Director.

E. Reporting of internal auditor: The internal auditors have access to directly report to the audit committee.

x) Certificate received from a practising company secretary confirming that none of the directors on the Board of Directors of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is appended to this report.

xi) There has not been any instance where the Board of Directors did not accept the recommendations of committees of the Board, which is
mandatorily required.

xii) Compliance certificate from M/s SJAB & Associates, a firm of practising company secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of corporate
governance is appended to this report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 (DIN: 00060259)

DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

Dear Members,

| hereby declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all the members of Board of Directors and senior management personnel
of the Company have affirmed compliance with the Company’s code of conduct for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022.

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 (DIN: 00060259)
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Members of Cheviot Company Limited
24, Park Street, Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park, Kolkata 700016

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Cheviot Company
Limited having CIN L65993WB1897PLC001409 and having registered office at 24, Park Street, Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park,
Kolkata 700016 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we
hereby certify that none of the directors on the Board of the Company, as stated below, has been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such other Statutory Authority for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

SI. No. Name of the Directors DIN Date of appointment in Company
(as per MCA Portal)
1 Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria 00060259 28/08/1975
2 Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria 06950837 24/05/2017
3 Mr. Navin Nayar 00136057 30/07/2001
4 Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan 00019700 23/09/2006
5 Mrs. Rashmi Prashad 00699317 01/04/2019
6 Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania 00181159 05/06/2003
7 Mrs. Malati Kanoria 00253241 09/05/2014

Ensuring the eligibility, for the appointment / continuity of every director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to

the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For SJAB & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

CS Shreya Jain

Partner

Membership no.: A63594

CP no.: 24772

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 UDIN: A063594D000391856
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of Cheviot Company Limited
24, Park Street, Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park, Kolkata 700016

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Cheviot Company Limited (“the Company”), for the year
ended on 31st March, 2022, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Para C and D of Schedule V
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing
Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the
review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For SJAB & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

CS Shreya Jain

Partner

Membership no.: A63594

CP no.: 24772

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 UDIN: A063594D000391812
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ANNEXURE I TO THE BOARD'S REPORT & in Lakhs)

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

s Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company

At Cheviot, we believe in a responsible shared value approach to augment industrial growth together with actions directed to create
prosperity among all our stakeholders, employees and the community at large. During the year, our CSR programs were oriented
toward various activities to support the treatment of COVID-19 patients and to support our frontline healthcare workers involved
in their treatment. CSR programs were also undertaken to promote nationally recognised sport and for the benefit of armed force
dependents.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Name of the Director Designation / Number of meetings Number of meetings of
Nature of Directorship of CSR Committee CSR Committee attended
held during the year during the year
1 Mrs. Malati Kanoria Chairperson, Non-executive director 2 2
2 Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan | Member, Independent director 2 2
3 Mrs. Rashmi Prashad Member, Independent director 2 2
3. Provide the web-link where composition of
CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects https://www.cheviotgroup.com or
approved by the Board are disclosed on the https://www.groupcheviot.net/investors-jute/corporate-governance-jute/
website of the Company
4. Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR
projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Not applicable

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable
(attach the report)

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Financial Year Amount available for set-off from preceding Amount required to be set-off for the financial
financial years year, if any
NIL

6. Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 611818
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act % 12236
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years T Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any T Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢) 12236
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ANNEXURE IITOTHE BOARD’S REPORT R in Lakho)

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Amount Unspent

Total amount spent for | Total amount transferred to Unspent CSR | Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII
the Financial Year Account as per Section 135(6) of the Act as per second proviso to Section 135(5) of the Act

Date of transfer Name of the Fund Date of transfer

12255 Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year

----—---——

Name [tem Location of the | Project | Amount | Amount Amount Mode of Mode of implementation
of from the project duration | allocated | spent transferred | implementation— | —Through Implementing
the list of for the in the to Unspent Direct (Yes/No) Agency
Project | activities project current CSR
in financial account

Schedule year for the
VIl project as
to the per Section
Act 135(6) of
the Act

State | District Name | CSR Registration
number

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year

) ©)

[tem from the Location of Amount Mode of Mode of implementation —
the Project list of the project spent for [ implemen- [ Through Implementing Agency
activities in S the tation —
Schedule VII project Direct
to the Act (Yes/No)
State District Name CSR Registration
number
Contribution of N95 (i) No Maharashtra | Mumbai
masks to Tata Healthcare

Memorial Hospital

2 | Treatment of COVID | Cl. (i) No Guijarat Gandhinagar < 25.00 No Kanoria CSR00002759
patients Healthcare Seva Kendra
3 | For promoting Cl. (vii) No Maharashtra | Pune 31205 No Lakshya CSR00002633
nationally Nationally Institute
recognised sport Recognised Sports
4 | For benefit of armed | Cl. (vi) No Various Various T 54.00 Yes NA NA
forces dependents Benefit of armed States across | Districts
forces dependents India across India
TOTAL 122,55
(d) Amount spent in administrative overheads NIL
(e) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable NIL
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e) #2255
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(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) of the Act 12236
(i) Total amount spent for the financial year 12255
(iif) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii) — (i)] 2019
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 019
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years

Preceding Amount transferred to Amount spent ferl ) i r | Amount remaining to be spent
Financial Year | Unspent CSR Account in the reporting i 35(6 i in succeeding financial years

under Section 135(6) of financial year
the Act

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s)

-—————

SI. Project ID Name of the Financial year Project Total amount Amount spent Cumulative Status of the project —
No. Project in which the duration allocated for on the project amount spent | Completed / Ongoing
project was the project in the reporting at the end
commenced financial year of reporting
financial year

NIL
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent
in the financial year (asset-wise details)
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset No capital asset was created
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is or acquired by the Company
registered, their address etc. out of the CSR spent in the

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and s

location of the capital asset)

11 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as

per Section 135(5) of the Act 1 ciicppliszols

For and on behalf of the Board

Malati Kanoria

Non-Executive Director
Chairperson of CSR Committee
(DIN: 00253241)

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 (DIN: 00060259)
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

(i)

(i)

Financial Statements | Notice

& in Lakhs)

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year

Directors

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria, Wholetime Director

Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director
Mrs. Rashmi Prashad, Independent Director

Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania, Independent Director

Mrs. Malati Kanoria, Non Executive Director

Ratio
267:1
267:1
3:1
31
31
31
31

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief financial officer, chief executive officer, company secretary in the

financial year

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Kanoria, Chairman and Managing Director, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Utkarsh Kanoria, Wholetime Director

Mr. Navin Nayar, Independent Director

Mr. Padam Kumar Khaitan, Independent Director

Mrs. Rashmi Prashad, Independent Director

Mr. Sushil Kumar Dhandhania, Independent Director

Mrs. Malati Kanoria, Non Executive Director

Mr. Madhup Kumar Patni, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Aditya Banerjee, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company (as on 31st March, 2022)

% Increase / (Decrease)

51%

58%

(2)%

2%

20%

25%

4%

4,127 employees

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if

there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

The operating profit increased by 59% during the year under review. The managerial remuneration has increased by 52% mainly on
account of higher commission on operating profit determined by the Board in accordance with the terms of appointment approved
by the members and within the permissible limits of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The average percentile increase in the

salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel was at around 2%.

Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company

The Company affirms that the remuneration paid to employees, who are covered under Remuneration Policy, is in accordance with the

Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 00060259)
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
A. Conservation of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact | Following steps are taken inter-alia for conservation of energy during the year to reduce consumption of
on conservation of energy energy:

(i) Replacement of conventional 36W Tube Lights, 60W incandescent lamps with lower wattage LED lamps
within the factory premises;

(i)  Gradual replacement of high wattage (36w, 70w, 150w) street lights with low wattage (15w, 35w, 50w)
LED street light with higher lumen output;

(i) Retrofitting and replacement of old 550V induction motors with 415V new IE2 higher efficiency category
motor;

(iv) Insulation of steam pipe line to minimise heat waste and insulation of air-compressor pipe line to
minimise the no-load loss during idle run time;

v) Replacement of reciprocating compressor with 25-30% higher energy efficient rotary screw compressor;
vi) Optimum loading of motor or re-sizing of motor capacity according to application;

vii) Relocate existing capacitor banks to improve Line Power Factor of the feeders and minimise I’R loss; and
viii) Gradual modification of conventional spinning frames.

(i) The steps taken by the Following steps are taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy :
for utilisi

companyfor Utiising (i)  Use of jute waste as fuel in Boilers;

alternate sources of energy

(i) Possibility of solar power generation is under study.

(iii) The capital investment During the year under review, there was no capital investment on energy conservation equipment. All energy
on energy conservation conservation measures were consumable in nature.
equipment

B. Technology Absorption

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption The Company strives to adopt latest technology available for
Jute Industry and takes required measures for upgradation of
machineries in the most efficient manner.

(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, Cost reduction through sustainable use of resources.
product development or import substitution

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years | No technology has been imported during the last three years.
reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :

a) the details of technology imported

b) the year of import

¢) whether the technology been fully absorbed

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place

and the reasons thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on research and development Nil

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
(i) Foreign exchange earned during the year in terms of actual inflow 22,965.42 15,614.15
(i) Foreign exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflow 4,909.34 1,764.66

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria
Chairman and Managing Director,
Chief Executive Officer

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 (DIN: 00060259)
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ANNEXURE V TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2022
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

24, Park Street,

Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park,
Kolkata 700016, West Bengal

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices
by M/s. CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022
(“the audit period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 :
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies
Act and dealing with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable
regulations /guidelines/circulars issued by SEBI from time to time;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018
We further report that, there were no actions/events in pursuance of:
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 / Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 / Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 / Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
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vi) The Company had identified following laws as specifically applicable to the Company, other than general laws, namely:
(a) Jute & Jute Textiles Control Orders 2000 & 2016 (as applicable) issued under Essential Commodities Act, 1955;
(b) Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules made thereunder;
(c) The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder.

We further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company, we have relied upon the representation made by the
Management, for compliance with the other applicable laws.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards as issued and mandated by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that,

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
directors. There are no changes in the composition of Board of Directors during the period under review and the composition of Board of
Directors of the Company are in conformity with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

None of the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no instance of recording any dissenting member’s view
in the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, requlations and guidelines.

We further report that due to the spread of COVID-19 pandemic, compliances had been made considering the various relaxations granted, from
time to time, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and other Regulatory authorities, as applicable.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company had made offer for Buy-back of 2,50,000 nos. of ordinary shares of face value of
¥ 10/- each on a proportionate basis through tender offer route at a price of ¥ 1,725/- per share for an aggregate consideration of ¥ 43,12,50,000/-.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A”and forms an integral part of this Report.

For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries

A Peer Reviewed Firm

Peer Review Certificate No.: 720/2020

[CS Sneha Khaitan]

Partner

ACS No.:A34458

CP No.:14929

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 UDIN No. A034458D000387800
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ANNEXURE V TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

To

“ANNEXURE - A"TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2022

The Members,

CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED

24, Park Street,

Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park,
Kolkata 700016, West Bengal

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the

contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

. Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening

of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and standards is the responsibilities of the

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

. Asregard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions referred to in our Secretarial Audit Reportin

Form MR-3 the adherence and compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management. Our examination
was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various forms, reports, returns and documents that need to be filed by
the Company with various authorities under the said regulations. We have not verified the correctness and coverage of the contents of such
forms, reports, returns and documents.

. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which

the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries

A Peer Reviewed Firm

Peer Review Certificate No.: 720/2020

[CS Sneha Khaitan]
Partner

ACS No.:A34458
CP No.:14929

Kolkata, 26th May, 2022 UDIN No. A034458D000387800
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Cheviot Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cheviot Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
March 31,2022, and the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and it's profit including other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those SA's are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have fulfilled the
responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

The key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

A. Valuation of Inventories We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the
Refer to note 13 to the financial statements. management’s assumptions applied in calculating the value of
As described in the accounting policies in note 3.1 to the financial | the inventories and related provisions by: -
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of costand net realisable | 1 Completing a walkthrough of the inventory valuation process
value. As a result, the management applies judgement in determining and assessed the design and implementation of the key
the appropriate provisions for obsolete stock based upon a detailed controls addressing the risk.
analysis of old inventory, net realisable value below cost based upon

) 2. Verifying the effectiveness of key inventory controls operatin
future plans for sale of inventory. ying y y P g

over inventories; including sample based physical verification.

3. Verifying for a sample of individual products that costs have
been correctly recorded.

4. Comparing the net realisable value to the cost price of
inventories to check for completeness of the associated
provision.

5. Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning
and the level of inventory write-offs during the year.

6. Recomputing provisions recorded to verify that they are in line
with the Company policy.

Our Observation:

Based on the audit procedures performed, we are satisfied that
the valuation of inventories is appropriate.
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The key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B. Valuation and existence of Non-Current and Current Investments Our audit procedures included:

Refer note 9 and 14 to the financial statements. 1. We understood, assessed and tested the design and operating
The company holds Non-Current and Current Investments amounting effectiveness of key controls surrounding fair valuation of
t0% 17,673.96 lakhs and ¥ 5,508.10 lakhs respectively which represents investments.

38.25% of total assets as at March 31, 2022. The Investments comprise of
mutual funds, debenture and bonds, government securities, preference
shares and Alternate Investment Fund and are majorly actively traded
with readily available quoted market prices / net assets value. The
investments being financial instruments needs to be appropriately
designated at fair value through profit or loss, fair value through other | 3- We have verified on sample basis the fair valuation of all

2. We have obtained demat account holding statement /
confirmations, Mutual fund and Alternate Investment Fund
statements to verify the existence and ownership of the
company’s Investment portfolio.

comprehensive income (not to be recycled) or at amortised cost. Investments held as at March 31, 2022 to the Net Assets

Further, these financial instruments need to be valued and classified as Value provided by the respective Mutual funds and Alternate

Level 1, 2 or 3 financial instruments as per the fair value hierarchy. This Investment Funds, market value of debenture and bonds

was an area of focus for our audit and the area where significant audit and government securities from source data and tested

ot was dliecied the arithmetical accuracy of the calculation of valuation of
investments.

4. We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s disclosures.
Our Observation:

Based on the audit procedures performed, we are satisfied with
valuation and existence of non-current and current investments.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors'report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors'Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended
March 31, 2022 has been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors'Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022 on its financial position in its financial statements -
Refer note 45.1 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF") by
the Company.

iv.@) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 58(v) to the financial
statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 58(vi) to the financial
statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph
2(h) (iv)(a) & (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E

Ankit Dhelia

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 069178
Dated: May 26, 2022 UDIN: 22069178AJRKAIT771
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 with the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date in respect
to Statutory Audit of Cheviot Company Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022)

We report that:

i. (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(© The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements
are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company. However, mutation of land in Company’s name in
government land records is pending in following case:

Description of item of Property Gross | Title Deeds | Whether title deed holder | Property | Reason for not being held in the

carrying | heldin the is a promoter, director held since name of the Company
value name of or relative of promoter/ | which date
Q)] director or employee of
promoter / director
Certain portions of Freehold Land 0.20 Cheviot No 1920/ 1933 | Mutation of land for name change
situated at Mouza Hetalkhali Company in respect of certain portions
under Budge Budge Municipality Limited of freehold land received from
in the State of West Bengal M/s Chitpore Golabari Company

Limited through perpetual
lease/settlement  operation is
pending.

(d) As disclosed in note 5(3) to the financial statements, the Company has revalued its freehold land during the year ended
March 31, 2022. The revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered valuer and the amount of change is more than 10% of the
aggregate of the net carrying value of freehold land as a class of property plant and equipment.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there
are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii.(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventories (excluding inventories in transit) at reasonable intervals during
the year and discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on physical verification of such
inventories. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such
verification is appropriate.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from bank during the year on
the basis of security of current assets and mortgage of immovable properties of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed
by the Company with such bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

iii.@@) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee or provided security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made by the Company in mutual funds, alternate investment funds, bonds and other securities are not prejudicial to
the Company’s interest.

(© The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Annual Report 2021-22 | 49



CHEVIOT

SINCE 1897

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (contd.)

Vi.

vii. (@)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with provisions of Section
186 of the Act in respect of investments made. The Company has not granted any loan or provided any guarantee or security under
Section 185 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the
meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Order made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act. We are of the opinion, that prime-facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the
same with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income tax,
goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues to the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues of goods and service tax, sales tax, income tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, service tax and value added tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute and the forum where the
dispute is pending as on March 31, 2022 are as under: -

Name of the | Nature of dues Amount Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
statute ® in lakhs)

viii.

Income Tax Income Tax 2391 FY. 2015 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)
Act, 1961 40.14 FY.2016-17 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)
53.46 FY.2017-18 Commissioner of Income tax (Appeals)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on our audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not raised any
fund by way of term loan during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)( ) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes
by the Company.
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Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv. (@)

XV.

XVil.

XViii.

XiX.

The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture or associate. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture or associate. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt instruments)
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or partially or optionally convertible
debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting true and fair view of the financial statements and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by
the cost auditor/secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government during the year.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause
3(xii)(@), (b) & (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of audit report, for the period under audit.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment
Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Refer note 57 to the financial
statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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xx. (@)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no
unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Act in compliance with second proviso
to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act.

(b)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing
projects that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of Section 135 of the Act.

XXi. The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E

Ankit Dhelia

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 069178
Dated: May 26, 2022 UDIN: 22069178AJRKAIT771

ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements of
CHEVIOT COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to the financial statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal financial
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049E

Ankit Dhelia

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No. 069178
Dated: May 26, 2022 UDIN: 22069178AJRKAIT771
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R in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 14,731.13 2142224
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5A 3,658.07 3,222.71
(c) Right of use assets 6 85.40 116.07
(d) Investment property 7 20.92 21.36
(e) Other intangible assets 8 945 12.39
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 17,673.96 19,324.90
(i) Other financial assets 10 619.58 1,400.86
(g) Non-current tax assets (net) 11 114.90 114.90
(h) Other non-current assets 12 206.37 323.29
Total non-current assets 37,119.78 45,958.72
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 13 8,769.83 821534
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 14 5,508.10 12,913.64
(i) Trade receivables 15 4,946.56 420740
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 16 915.47 404.96
(iv) Other bank balances other than Note - 16 17 1,514.27 92844
(v) Other financial assets 18 588.98 350.37
(c) Other current assets 19 1,244.58 950.74
Total current assets 23,487.79 27,970.89
TOTAL ASSETS 60,607.57 73,929.61
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 20 602.04 627.04
(b) Other equity 21 54,697.58 67,590.14
Total equity 55,299.62 68,217.18
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 741 22.23
(ii) Lease liabilities 23 49.51 8147
(iii) Other financial liabilities 24 170.32 153.30
(b) Provisions 25 35.20 31.15
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 26 1,290.65 2,338.80
(d) Other non-current liabilities 27 29.84 46.47
Total non-current liabilities 1,582.93 2,673.42
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 28 764.44 834.22
(ii) Lease liabilities 29 31.97 29.25
(iii) Trade payables 30
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises 644.85 408.39
(iv) Other financial liabilities 31 1,752.26 1,252.96
(b) Other current liabilities 32 22042 173.85
() Provisions 33 162.69 175.75
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 34 14839 164.59
Total current liabilities 3,725.02 3,039.01
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 60,607.57 73,929.61
Basis of accounting 2
Significant accounting policies 3
Significant judgement and key estimate 4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report attached

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302049k

For and on behalf of the Board
Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman and Managing Director
Chief Executive Officer
(DIN - 00060259)

Madhup Kumar Patni
Chief Financial Officer

Ankit Dhelia Aditya Banerjee
Partner Company Secretary
Membership No. 069178

Place: Kolkata
Dated the 26th day of May, 2022
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Statement Of PI‘Oﬁt and LOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2022 ® in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
31st March 2022

()  Revenue from operations
(Il) Otherincome
() Total Income (I-+1)
(IV) Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

(c
(d

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

(f) Other expenses
Total Expenses (IV)
(V) Profit before exceptional items and tax (IlI-IV)
(V1) Exceptional items
(VIl) Profit before tax (V+VI)
(V) Tax expense
(a) Current tax (including tax for earlier years)
(b) Deferred tax
Total tax expense (VIII)
(IX) Profit for the year (VII-VIII)
(X) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Changes in revaluation surplus
(b) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
(c) Equity instruments through other comprehensive income
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (X)
(XI) Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)
(XIl) Earnings per equity share (Face value of ¥ 10 /- each)
(a) Basic (ing)
(b) Diluted (inR)
Basis of accounting
Significant accounting policies

Significant judgement and key estimate
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report attached

For Singhi & Co. Madhup Kumar Patni
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer
Firm Registration No. 302049E

Ankit Dhelia Aditya Banerjee
Partner Company Secretary
Membership No. 069178

Place: Kolkata

Dated the 26th day of May, 2022
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40
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43

43

57,113.07
2,608.95
59,722.02

32,804.03
3.06
6,983.33
42.57
436.33
9,272.46
49,541.78
10,180.24

10,180.24

2,317.56

(72.19)
2,245.37
7,934.87

(5,739.02)
252.54
(912.40)

(4,574.08)
3,360.79

127.40
12740

39,575.57
4,554.73
44,130.30

23,078.03
(781.02)
5,783.46

43.95
450.36
6,253.74
34,828.52
9,301.78

9,301.78

1,498.47

231.00
1,729.47
7,572.31

400.02
138.78
(4.14)

542.94
8,115.25

11843
11843

For and on behalf of the Board

Harsh Vardhan Kanoria

Utkarsh Kanoria

Navin Nayar

Chairman and Managing Director

Chief Executive Officer

()

Wi
(D)

IN - 00060259)

holetime Director
IN - 06950837)

Independent Director

D

IN - 00136057)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 315t March, 2022

R in Lakhs)
a. Equity share capital

Particulars ‘ Amount

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 647.04
Less : Changes in equity share capital during the year 20.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 627.04
Less : Changes in equity share capital during the year [Refer Note 20 (f)] 25.00
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 602.04

b. Other equity

Particulars Reserves and surplus Items of other comprehensive income

Equity
i Special instruments
Capital | General e economiczone | Retained | through other | Revaluation
reserve | reserve Pacerve re-investment | earnings comprehensive surplus
reserve account income

Remeasurements
of the defined
benefit plans

Balance as at
1st April, 2020 0.24 | 40,131.14 29.92 147.82 6,214.56 (53.71) 15,199.59 - 61,669.56

Profit for the year - - - - 757231 - - - 757231

Other
comprehensive
income/(loss) for the
year * = = = = = 123.18 12042 299.34 54294

Total
comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 7,572.31 123.18 120.42 299.34 8,115.25

Transfer/utilisation
on account of
Buy-back of ordinary
shares (1,800.00) 20.00 S = = = = (1,780.00)

Payment of tax on
Buy-back of ordinary
shares (414.67) - - - - - - (414.67)

Reclassification
from other
comprehensive
income to retained
earnings - - - - 6947 (69.47) - - -

Transfer from other
comprehensive
income
(remeasurement
gain/loss net of tax)
to retained earnings - - - - 299.34 - - (299.34) -

Transfer from special
economic zone
re-investment
reserve account

147.82 - (147.82) - - - - -

Balance as at
31st March, 2021 0.24 | 38,064.29 49.92 - | 14,155.68 = 15,320.01 = 67,590.14

* Figures in revaluation surplus column represents impact of deferred tax.
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Statement Of Changes in EqUity for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (contd..)

& in Lakhs)

Particulars Reserves and surplus Items of other comprehensive income

Equity
. Special instruments
. Capital . . . Remeasurements
Capital General . economic zone Retained through other Revaluation
redemption . . X of the defined
reserve reserve re-investment earnings comprehensive surplus

reserve . benefit plans
reserve account income

Balance as at

31st March, 2021 0.24 | 38,064.29 49.92 - 14,155.68 - 15,320.01 - 67,590.14
Profit for the year - - - - 7,934.87 - - - 7,934.87
Other

comprehensive
income/(loss) for

the year - - - - - - (4,763.06) 188.98 (4,574.08)
Total

comprehensive

income for the

year = = = = 7,934.87 = (4,763.06) 188.98 3,360.79

Special dividend
paid for F.Y. 2020-21 = - - - | (10,967.03) - - - (10,967.03)

Transfer/utilisation on

account of Buy-back

of ordinary shares

[Refer Note - 20 (f)] - (431250) 25.00 - - - - - (4,287.50)

Payment of tax
on Buy-back of
ordinary shares - (998.82) - - - - - - (998.82)

Transfer from other

comprehensive

income

(remeasurement

gain/loss net of

tax) to retained

earnings = = = = 188.98 = = (188.98) =

Balance as at
31st March, 2022 0.24 | 32,752.97 74.92 - 11,312.50 - 10,556.95 - 54,697.58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Singhi & Co. Madhup Kumar Patni Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Firm Registration No. 302049E (DIN - 00060259)

Ankit Dhelia Aditya Banerjee Utkarsh Kanoria Wholetime Director

Partner Company Secretary (DIN - 06950837)

Membership No. 069178

Place: Kolkata Navin Nayar Independent Director

Dated the 26th day of May, 2022 (DIN -00136057)
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Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2022

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Income from deferred revenue grant

Net gain on sale of investments measured at FVTPL

Net gain on fair value changes of investments
measured at FVTPL

Net (profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest income
Dividend income
Rental income

Property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets written off

Finance costs

Liabilities no longer required written back
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash from operating activities
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436.33
(48.44)
(20.52)
(393.53)

(1,024.32)
188.90
(966.82)
(6.06)

2.21
4257
(12.14)

(554.49)
(737.11)
25.56
85.41
255.78
488.67
(9.01)
42.96

10,180.24

450.36
(23.34)
(22.31)
(1,01842)

(2,520.18)

(27.15)

(985.45)

(7.75)

(1.82)

0.06

43.95

(1,801.82) (5.10)
8,378.42

(55.31)

(765.30)

(47.68)

789.62

5531

(142.57)

(67.58)

(402.23) (10.30)
7,976.19
(2,378.74)
5,597.45

R in Lakhs)

9,301.78

(4,117.15)
5,184.63

(243.81)
4,940.82
(1,456.63)
3,484.19
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Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (contd..)

& in Lakhs)
31st March 2022
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets (including changes in capital
work-in-progress, capital advances/creditors) (1,046.35) (782.40)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 71223 59.21
Purchase of investments (18,475.00) (23,840.63)
Sale of investments 28,838.52 20,785.61
Redemption of fixed deposits with a maturity
more than 90 days 248.85 467.70
Rent received - 1.82
Interest received 1,053.50 971.42
Dividend received 553 9.27
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 11,337.28 (2,328.00)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of non-current borrowings (14.81) (18.61)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest thereon) (37.40) (37.40)
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) (69.79) 402.97
Payment for Buy-back of ordinary shares (4,312.50) (1,800.00)
Payment of tax for Buy-back of ordinary shares (998.82) (414.67)
Dividend paid (10,967.03) =
Interest and other finance charges paid (34.18) (23.72)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (16,434.53) (1,891.43)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
(A+B+C) 500.20 (735.24)
Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance) 404.96 1,139.55
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 10.31 0.65
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance) 915.47 404.96
Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2022
Notes:
1. Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note - 16) included in the cash flows
statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts:
Cash on hand 2.99 4.58
Cheques on hand 0.89 597
Balances with banks 911.59 39441
Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance) 91547 404.96

2. The above cash flows statement has been prepared under Indirect Method'as set out in Ind AS - 7, “Statement of Cash Flows".
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Statement Of CaSh FIOWS for the year ended 31st March, 2022 (contd..)

& in Lakhs)

3. Statement of reconciliation of financing activities :

Particulars Borrowings Borrowings (Current)

(Non-current) (including
current maturities)

Balance as at 1st April, 2020 (including interest accrued thereon) 55.71 416.44
Cash flow (net) (1861) 402.97
Non-cash changes

- Fair value changes - B

Interest expense 444 14.01
Interest paid (4.50) (14.01)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (including interest accrued thereon) 37.04 819.41
Cash flow (net) (14.81) (69.79)

Non-cash changes

- Fair value changes - -

Interest expense 2.69 10.93
Interest paid (2.69) (10.93)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (including interest accrued thereon) 22.23 749.62

4. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped/re-classified, wherever necessary, to make them comparable to the current year’s presentation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board

For Singhi & Co. Madhup Kumar Patni Harsh Vardhan Kanoria Chairman and Managing Director
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Firm Registration No. 302049E (DIN - 00060259)

Ankit Dhelia Aditya Banerjee Utkarsh Kanoria Wholetime Director

Partner Company Secretary (DIN - 06950837)

Membership No. 069178

Place: Kolkata Navin Nayar Independent Director

Dated the 26th day of May, 2022 (DIN - 00136057)
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NOtES tO the Fina nCiaI Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

1. CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Cheviot Company Limited (the “Company”) is a listed Public Limited Company incorporated in India. The Company has its registered office
at 24, Park Street, Celica House, 9th Floor, Celica Park, Kolkata-700016.

The Company manufactures jute products with flexibility to cater to both domestic and international market. The Company is renowned for
manufacturing superior quality Hessian fabrics for export market at the Export Oriented Unit situated at Falta Special Economic Zone in the
state of West Bengal, India.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
. Statement of Compliance

N
p

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") as prescribed by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on 26th May, 2022.

2.2. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention, except for following:

Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value/amortised cost;
Freehold land on revaluation model;
Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
Defined benefit plans are measured at fair value.
2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees ), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in &) has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.
2.4, Use of Estimates and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements require judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities including contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period prospectively in which
the results are known/materialised.
2.5. Current Vs Non-Current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is classified as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All the other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
non-current liabilities respectively.
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2.6. Adoption of new Accounting Standards

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) issued
notifications dated 24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by
the Company in its financial statements. These amendments are applicable to the Company for the period starting 1st April, 2021.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are given below. These accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

3.1. Inventories

- Raw materials, stores and spares and loose tools are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. However, items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost, if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to
be sold at or above cost. Cost includes cost of purchase, non-refundable taxes and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is computed on weighted average basis.

- Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Finished goods and work-in-progress include
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is computed on
weighted average basis.

- Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and estimated
cost necessary to make the sale. Net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related
finished goods.

- Adequate provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving stocks, wherever necessary.
3.2.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and in hand, cheques in hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3.3.Income Tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from)
the taxation authorities based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted during the period.

b) Deferred Tax

- Deferred tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

- Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also recognised for
carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

- Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. The Company reduces the carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

- Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive
income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOtES tO the Fina nCiaI Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment

a)

Recognition and Measurement:

- Property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any).

Freehold land has been stated at revalued amount. The difference between carrying amount of such land and fair value less any
impairment loss is shown as revaluation surplus net of deferred tax under the head other equity. The changes in fair value of land is
recognised in other comprehensive income net of deferred tax and accumulated in other equity under the head revaluation surplus.
The revaluation surplus shall be transferred to retained earnings when the asset is derecognised.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable import duties and
taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, borrowing cost, if capitalisation criteria is met and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

- In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocation of directly
attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to working condition for its intended use,
and present value of any estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. The costs
of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
the asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-constructed assets.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

- Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

b) Subsequent Expenditure

o)

- Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

Major inspection/ repairs/ overhauling expenses are recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any unamortised part of the previously recognised expenses of similar
nature is derecognised.

Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method at the rates determined based on the useful
lives of respective assets as prescribed in the Schedule Il of the Act.

- Each part of items of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately. Certain components of property, plant and equipment as identified by the Company have been depreciated at their
respective useful lives ranging between 4 and 10 years.

- Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on which asset is ready
for use (disposed of).

- Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted, if appropriate.

d) Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Reclassification to Investment Property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as investment property
at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on amount borrowed for
acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project implementation in so far as such expenses relate
to the period prior to the commencement of commercial production. Advances given towards acquisition or construction of property,
plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date are disclosed as Capital advances under “Other Non-Current Assets”.
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3.5. Leases

a)

b)

Company as a Lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Company as a Lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Company recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed. Contingent and variable rentals are recognised as expense in the periods
in which they are incurred.

(i) Right-of-Use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-
measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer
to the accounting policies in Note 3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets.

Extension and termination options are included in many of the leases. In determining the lease term the management considers all facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option.

(i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

- Fixedlease payments (including in-substance fixed payments) payable during the lease term and under reasonably certain extension
options, less any lease incentives;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date;
The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.

(iii) Short-Term Leases and Leases of Low-Value Assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Property, Plant & Equipment (i.e. those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.6.Revenue Recognition

a) Sale of Goods

Ind AS - 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” introduce one single new model for recognition of revenue which includes a
5-step approach and detailed guidelines. Among other, such guidelines are on allocation of revenue to performance obligations within
multi-element arrangements, measurement and recognition of variable consideration and the timing of revenue recognition.

The Company considers the terms of the contract in determining the transaction price. The transaction price is based upon the amount
the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring of promised goods and services to the customer after deducting
incentive programs, included but not limited to discounts, volume rebates etc.

Revenue from the sale of jute products is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes any
taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government. Company recognises revenue at a point in time, when control is transferred to
the customer, and the consideration agreed is expected to be received. Control is generally deemed to be transferred upon delivery of
the components in accordance with the agreed delivery plan.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
and payment by customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time
value of money.

b) Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

¢) Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment has been established.

d) Other Operating Revenue

Export incentives and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
attached to them and the incentive will be received.

Insurance claims are accounted to the extent the Company is reasonably certain of their ultimate collection.

3.7.Employee Benefits

a) ShortTerm Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services are provided.
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’services up to the end of
the reporting period.

b) Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for earned leaves that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present value of
the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the rate of government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. Remeasurements as the result of experience adjustment and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

c) Post Employment Benefits

The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

Defined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
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The liability recognised for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the
fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The net interest
cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets.
The benefits are discounted using the rate of government securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling are recognised in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit
and loss.

- Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employees’ State Insurance Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year. The Company makes specified monthly contributions
towards employees provident fund to a trust administered by the Company as well as to provident fund plan operated by the
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The minimum rate of interest which is payable every year by the trust to the beneficiaries
is notified by the Government. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the
investments of the trust and the notified interest rate.

d) Termination Benefit

Expenditure incurred on Voluntary Retirement Scheme is charged to the statement of profit and loss immediately.

3.8. Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and the Company
will comply with all the attached conditions. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed or netted off with related expenses. Grants related
to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred revenue and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other operating revenue.

3.9. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the
reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities are generally recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the
statement of profit and loss within finance costs.

Non-monetary items are not retranslated at period end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rate at the
transaction date).

3.10. Borrowing Cost

3.11.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs
also includes exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as a part of the cost of that
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. The Company
considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of time.

Transaction costs in respect of long term borrowing are amortised over the tenure of respective loans using Effective Interest Rate (EIR)
method. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
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a) Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement:

All financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. A
financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

>

>
>
>

Measured at amortised cost;

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
- Theasset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows; and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method.

Measured at FVTOCI:
A financial asset is measured at the FVTOC! if both the following conditions are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at
fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment
gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in interest income. Where the asset is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in other comprehensive income reserve is transferred in the statement of profit and loss.

Measured at FVTPL:

FVTPL s a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised
cost or as FVTOC], is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. Financial asset included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Interest/dividend income on financial instruments measured at FVTPL are presented separately under other income.

Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI:

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS — 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified
as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at
FVTOC], then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCl. There is no reclassification of
the amounts from OCl to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment.
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Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS — 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and/ or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit
losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

b) Financial Liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, as loans and borrowings, as payables or
as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent Measurement:

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-
for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

c¢) Derivative Financial Instruments:

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments viz. foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency
swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

3.12. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is treated
as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net selling price.
Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the assets. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units — CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.
The impairment loss recognised in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

3.13. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance
cost.
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3.14.

3.15.

Onerous Contracts:

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to
exist when a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from it.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will
be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the
existence of contingent liabilities in other notes to financial statements.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits. Contingent assets are not recognised though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Intangible Assets

a)

Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets comprise of computer software, expected to provide future enduring economic benefits are stated at cost less

accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, non-refundable taxes, duties, and incidental

expenses after deducting trade discounts and rebates related to the acquisition and installation of the assets.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with

the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenditure is recognised in

the statement of profit and loss.

Amortisation

- Intangible assets are amortised over a period of five years under straight line method.

- The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. If the expected useful
life of the assets is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with development of Intangible
assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to getting the assets ready for use.

Investment Properties

Investment property is property (comprising land or building or both) held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both,
but not for sale in ordinary course of business, used in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequently they are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The depreciable investment property i.e., buildings, are depreciated on a straight line method at a rate determined based on the useful
life as provided under Schedule Il of the Act.

Leasehold land is amortised on a straight line basis over the period of lease.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from the
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The net difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.
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3.16. Non-Current Assets (or disposal groups) held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

- Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of the carrying
amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

- Animpairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.
A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

- Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held
for sale. Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet. Any profit or loss
arising from the sale or remeasurement of discontinued operations is presented as part of a single line item in statement of profit and
loss.

3.17. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

3.18. Cash Dividend Distribution to Equity Holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and
the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date of approval
by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.

3.19. Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

+ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when 